
A. Pledge of Allegiance

B. Recording of Attendance by Town Clerk

C. Hearings

1. R23-001 Resolution Authorizing the Application for a Connecticut Small Cities Community
Development Block Grant.

 R23-001 Certified Resolution CDBG Block Grant 2023.pdf

2. R23-002  Resolution Endorsing the Updated Fair Housing Policy for the Town of Wethersfield 
 R23-002 Certified Resolution 2023 Fair Housing Action Plan.docx.pdf

D. Public Comment

E. Council Reports

F. Council Comments

G. Town Manager's Report

H. Town Clerk Communications

I. Bids

J. Consent Agenda

1. Appointments to Boards and Commissions

 B2b 2023-6-5 appointment.pdf

2. Approve Meeting Minutes

 

AGENDA
WETHERSFIELD TOWN COUNCIL

Monday, June 5, 2023
7:00 PM 

Town Council Chambers, 505 Silas Deane Highway

 

 
Presentations

Swearing In and Pinning of Assistant Fire Chief Anthony Dignoti

Heritage Commission  - Chris Traczyk, Chairperson

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Motion to approve the appointment of John P. Gallivan of 72 Westwood Drive to the Citizens
Recognition Committee for a term of 6-5-2023 to 6-30-2025.

 Motion to Approve Special Meeting Minutes May 15, 2023
Motion to Approve Regular Meeting Minutes May 22, 2023

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984484/R23-001_Certified_Resolution_CDBG_Block_Grant_2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984490/R23-002_Certified_Resolution_2023_Fair_Housing_Action_Plan.docx.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1989087/B2b_2023-6-5_appointment.pdf


 2023-05-15 Special Meeting Minutes - Budget Adoption w Attach.pdf
 2023-05-22r w Attach.pdf

K. Approval of Ordinances and Resolutions

1. R23-001  Resolution Authorizing the Application for a Connecticut Small Cities Community
Development Block Grant.

 R23-001 Certified Resolution CDBG Block Grant 2023.pdf

2. R23-002  Resolution Endorsing the updated Fair Housing Policy for the Town of Wethersfield

 R23-002 Certified Resolution 2023 Fair Housing Action Plan.docx.pdf

L. Unfinished Business

M. New Business

1. Authorize the Town to submit the Community Investment Fund Grant Application for Welcome to
Wethersfield.

 OW CIF2023 Prelim Plan 06-01-23 Rev1.pdf

2. Authorization to apply for a State Community Investment Fund Grant for Improvements to the William J.
Pitkin Community Center Complex.

 CommCenter-SiteImprovements-Plan_12-28-22.pdf

3. Authorization to Apply for a Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Grant.

 SDHCorridor-Phase1DemonstrationPlan_Rev05-26-23.pdf

4. Change in Town Council Meeting Date from June 19, 2023 to June 20, 2023

N. Public Comment

O. Executive Session

P. Adjourn

 

 Motion to approve Resolution R23-001 authorizing the application for a Connecticut Small CIties
Community Development Block Grant in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00 for improvements to
the Harvey Fuller Senior Housing Complex owned by the Wethersfield Housing Authority.

 Motion to approve Resolution R23-002 endorsing the updated Fair Housing Policy for the Town of
Wethersfield.

 

 

 Motion to authorize the Town of Wethersfield to apply for a State of Connecticut Community
Investment Fund grant up to $9,000,000.00 for improvements to the Main Street area for a grant
application entitled “Welcome to Wethersfield”.

 Motion to authorize the Town of Wethersfield to apply for a State of Connecticut Community
Investment Fund grant up to $6,000,000 for improvements to the William J. Pitkin Community
Complex.

 Motion to authorize the Town of Wethersfield to apply for a Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant up to
$1,100,000 for a planning study and demonstration activities for Silas Deane Highway.

 Motion to move the Monday, June 19, 2023 Town Council meeting to Tuesday, June 20, 2023 to
commemorate Juneteenth Day.

 

 

 
Meeting Viewing Options

Town of Wethersfield YouTube Channel  Wethersfield Government Access TV
COX channel 16 or Frontier channel 1601

Town of Wethersfield's Facebook page
 

Written comments accepted at council.comments@wethersfieldct.gov

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1979203/2023-05-15_Special_Meeting_Minutes_-_Budget_Adoption_w_Attach.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1979204/2023-05-22r_w_Attach.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984619/R23-001_Certified_Resolution_CDBG_Block_Grant_2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984623/R23-002_Certified_Resolution_2023_Fair_Housing_Action_Plan.docx.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1986987/OW_CIF2023_Prelim_Plan_06-01-23_Rev1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984588/CommCenter-SiteImprovements-Plan_12-28-22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984593/SDHCorridor-Phase1DemonstrationPlan_Rev05-26-23.pdf
https://wethersfieldct.gov/WGTV/Live
mailto:council.comments@wethersfieldct.gov


Submission deadline - 3:00 pm meeting day.
 

Boards and Commissions minutes available at  Wethersfield Agendas and Minutes

3

https://wethersfieldct.gov/government/agendas-and-minutes


TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Swearing In and Pinning of Assistant Fire Chief

Anthony Dignoti

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Fire Department

REQUESTED BY:

ITEM: Swearing In and Pinning of Assistant Fire Chief Anthony Dignoti

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:

ACTION REQUIRED:

4



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Heritage Commission  - Chris Traczyk, Chairperson

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Economic Development

REQUESTED BY:

ITEM: Heritage Commission  - Chris Traczyk, Chairperson

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:

ACTION REQUIRED:

5



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
R23-001 Resolution Authorizing the Application for a

Connecticut Small Cities Community Development
Block Grant.

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Town Manager

REQUESTED BY:

ITEM: R23-001 Resolution Authorizing the Application for a Connecticut Small Cities Community
Development Block Grant.

AGENDA ITEM NO. C.1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:
The resolution will authorize the Town of Wethersfield to submit an application for a Connecticut Small Cities
Community Development Block Grant in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00 for improvements to the Harvey
Fuller Senior Housing Complex owned by the Wethersfield Housing Authority.

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:
Without approval of this resolution, the Town would not meet the application requirements for the funding.

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:

ACTION REQUIRED:

ATTACHMENTS:
R23-001 Certified Resolution CDBG Block Grant 2023.pdf

6

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984484/R23-001_Certified_Resolution_CDBG_Block_Grant_2023.pdf


Town of Wethersfield

Town Council

Resolution

Resolution No. R23-001

BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council THAT

WHEREAS, Federal monies are available under the Connecticut Small Cities Community
Development Block Grant Program, administered by the State of Connecticut, Department of
Housing pursuant to Public Law 93 -3 83, as amended; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 127c, and Part VI of Chapter 130 of the Connecticut
General Statutes, the Commissioner of Housing is authorized to disburse such Federal
monies to local municipalities, and,

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the public interest that the Town Wethersfield make an
application to the State for $2,000,000.00 in order to undertake a Small Cities Community
Development Program and to execute an Assistance Agreement therefore, should one be
offered.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Town of Wethersfield Town Council:

1. That it is cognizant of the conditions and prerequisites for State Assistance imposed by
Part VI of Chapter 130 of The Connecticut General Statutes; and,

2. That the filing of an application by the Town of Wethersfield in an amount not to exceed
$2,000,000.00 is hereby approved, and that the Town Manager is hereby authorized and
directed to file such Application with the Commissioner of the Department of Housing, to
provide such additional information, to execute such other documents as may be required by
the Commissioner, to execute an Assistance Agreement with the State of Connecticut for
State financial assistance if such an Agreement is offered, to execute any amendments,
rescissions, and revisions thereto, and to act as the authorized representative of the Town of

7



Wethersfield; and,

3. The Connecticut Small Cities Community Development Block Grant Program application
is for renovations at Harvey Fuller Senior Housing Complex, an existing 32-unit elderly and
disabled housing development. The proposed work will include, but is not limited to,
bathroom upgrades to both ADA and non-ADA units, replace interior bedroom and closet
doors, interior and exterior painting, replace mailboxes, install new exhaust fans throughout,
install mini-splits at each unit, install GFCI outlets throughout, new hardwired combination
smoke/co detectors, upgrade interior and exterior lighting, new call for aid system, replace
baseboard heat elements, remove rear steps and replace with ramps, replace
pavement/walkways/curbing, new light poles throughout, and installation of a generator.

Introduced By: ___________________________ Date: _____________

8



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
R23-002  Resolution Endorsing the Updated Fair

Housing Policy for the Town of Wethersfield 

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Town Manager

REQUESTED BY: Frederick J. Presley, Town Manager in conjunction with Wethersfield Housing Authority

ITEM: R23-002  Resolution Endorsing the Updated Fair Housing Policy for the Town of
Wethersfield 

AGENDA ITEM NO. C.2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:
An updated Fair Housing Policy is required to submit the 2023 Small Cities Community Development Block Grant
application.

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:
If not approved, the grant application cannot be submitted.

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:

ACTION REQUIRED:

ATTACHMENTS:
R23-002 Certified Resolution 2023 Fair Housing Action Plan.docx.pdf

9

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984490/R23-002_Certified_Resolution_2023_Fair_Housing_Action_Plan.docx.pdf


00.2 FHAP

Town of Wethersfield
Connecticut

Fair Housing

Action Plan

2023

Frederick J. Presley
Town Manager

10



TOWN OF Wethersfield
Town Council

Resolution No. R23-002
BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council THAT

Whereas, All persons are afforded a right to full and equal housing opportunities in the
neighborhood of their choice; and

Whereas, Federal fair housing laws require that all individuals, regardless of race, color,
religion, sex, handicap, gender identity or expression, familial status or national
origin, be given equal access to all housing-related opportunities, including rental
and homeownership opportunities, and be allowed to make free choices
regarding housing location; and

Whereas, Connecticut fair housing laws require that all individuals, regardless of race,
creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, marital status, age, lawful source of
income, familial status, learning disability, physical or mental disability, sexual
orientation, or gender identity or expression be given equal access to all
housing-related opportunities, including rental and home ownership
opportunities, and be allowed to make free choices regarding housing location;
and

Whereas, The Town of Wethersfield is committed to upholding these laws, and realizes that
these laws must be supplemented by an Affirmative Statement publicly endorsing
the right of all people to full and equal housing opportunities in the neighborhood
of their choice.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Town of Wethersfield hereby endorses a Fair
Housing Policy to ensure equal opportunity for all persons to rent, purchase, obtain financing
and enjoy all other housing-related services of their choice on a non-discriminatory basis as
provided by state and federal law; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Town of Wethersfield hereby endorses a Fair Housing
Action Plan to incorporate the directives of State and Federal laws and Executive Orders to
provide and promote racial and economic integration in any housing development financially
supported with DOH funding and will take affirmative steps to reach beneficiaries from all
groups and to reach a broad range of income eligible beneficiaries for appropriate and
applicable housing opportunities.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Town Manager of the Town of Wethersfield or his/her
designated representative is responsible for responding to and assisting any person who
alleges to be the victim of an illegal discriminatory housing practice in the Town of Wethersfield
and for advising such person of the right to file a complaint with the State of Connecticut
Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities (CHRO) or the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) or to seek assistance from the CT Fair Housing Center, legal
services, or other fair housing organizations to protect his or her right to equal housing
opportunities.

Introduced By: _________________________________ Adopted: _______________

11



FAIR HOUSING ACTION PLAN

TOWN OF Wethersfield

I. Policy Statement
It shall be the policy and commitment of the Town of Wethersfield to ensure that
fair and equal housing opportunities are granted to all persons, in all housing
opportunities and development activities funded by the town, regardless of race,
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, marital
status, lawful source of income, familial status, national origin, ancestry, age or
mental or physical disability. This shall be done through a program of education,
an analysis of impediments, and designation of a Fair Housing Officer and
development of a procedure for complaints of discrimination. This plan will
incorporate the directives of state and federal laws and executive orders,
including, but not limited to:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
The Fair Housing Act – Title VIII of the Civil Rights Action of 1968, as amended
Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259
Section 104(b) of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of

1974, as amended
Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of

1974, as amended
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended
Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended
Executive Order 11246 (as amended by Executive Orders 12375 and 12086)

Equal Opportunity under HUD contracts and HUD-assisted Construction
Contracts

Executive Order 12892, Leadership and Coordination of Fair
Housing Connecticut General Statutes 46a-64c as amended

The Town of Wethersfield commits to providing and promoting racial and
economic integration in any housing development financially supported with DOH
funding and will take affirmative steps to reach beneficiaries from all racial and
ethnic groups as well as the physically or mentally handicapped and families with
children and to reach a broad range of income eligible beneficiaries for
appropriate and applicable housing opportunities.

12



II. Selection of Fair Housing Officer
In accordance with Title VIII, Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended, the Fair
Housing Officer below has been designated to handle fair housing complaints
and activities

Frederick Presley
Town Manager

Town of Wethersfield
505 Silas Deane Hwy
Wethersfield, CT 06109

860-721-2801
The Fair Housing Officer is responsible for the intake and processing of all
housing complaints as well as implementation of the Fair Housing Plan activities
and actions. While not expected to be an “expert” in Fair Housing Laws, at a
minimum, the officer will be familiar with the complaint process and federal and
state laws, which address Fair Housing. Records which show the date, time,
nature of complaint and decisions made in the complaint process will be fully
documented. A separate file will maintain a record of all housing discrimination
complaints and follow-up actions.

III. Complaint Process
Housing discrimination complaint forms such as Forms HUD-903 and HUD-903A
(Spanish version) from HUD, as well as, a summary of actions which may
constitute housing discrimination, and instructions for completing and filing
housing discrimination complaints will be made available to citizens at Town of
Wethersfield, Town Manager’s Office, 505 Silas Deane Hwy, Wethersfield, CT
06109. Complaints need not be made on official forms to be valid.

Forms will also be distributed to lenders, realtors, and at other public places such
as the Library periodically.

The Fair Housing Officer will reasonably assist the complainant in submitting the
complaint to the appropriate body by providing assistance in explaining the form
and/or contacting the appropriate office and allowing the use of town phones for
communication.

The individual(s) filing the complaint will then be advised of the option of filing
directly with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
within one year after an alleged violation, the Connecticut Commission on
Human Rights and Opportunities (CHRO) by filing a notarized complaint within
180 days of the alleged violation, or the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission or with all agencies simultaneously. The individual should also be
advised of the option of filing suit, at his/her expense in Federal District Court or
State Court within two years of an alleged violation. The individual should be
further advised that if he/she cannot afford an attorney, the Court may appoint
one and that a suit may be commenced even after filing a complaint, if the
individual has not signed a conciliation agreement and an Administrative Law
Judge has not started a hearing. A court may award actual and punitive damages
and attorney's fees and costs.

13



The Fair Housing Officer will keep a record of the progress on the number of
complaints filed, actions taken, and the status of each complaint.

IV. Opportunity Mapping
Using the Connecticut Opportunity Map, which is available at the DOH website,
the town has determined that the Town of Wethersfield is a Moderate area while
a portion is a Low area. The target area for the proposed 2023 project or activity
is located in a Very Low area.

V. Implementation and Action Steps
The town will take specific action steps and implementation activities over the
next three-year period following the guidelines provided by DOH.

Action Steps 1, 2, 9, 10, 11 or 12 (Set I)
Minimum (1) selection
11 Appoint a fair housing officer, have him or her trained on their duties and

responsibilities as a fair housing officer, and publicize the person’s name,
contact information, and job responsibilities.

Action Steps 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 13, 14 or 15 (Set II)
Minimum (1) selection
13 Refer complaints of housing discrimination to HUD, CHRO, or a private fair

housing agency.

Additional Steps
The Town of Wethersfield will adopt annually a Fair Housing Policy Statement
and a Fair Housing Resolution as an indication of its commitment to Fair Housing
Month during the month of April.

The Town of Wethersfield will display its fair housing policies/procedures and
ADA policies and grievance procedures on its website.

The Town of Wethersfield will display Fair Housing posters identifying the town’s
Fair Housing Officer, title, address and phone number in prominent locations. In
addition, fair housing information will be distributed outside of traditional
municipal locations including local realtors and banks.

All advertising of residential real estate owned by the Town of Wethersfield for
sale, rent or financing will contain the Fair Housing logo, equal opportunity
slogan as a means of educating the home seeking public that the property is
available to all persons regardless of race, color, religion, sex, mental or physical
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, familial status, marital
status, national origin, age, ancestry, or lawful source of income. All bid
advertisements by town sponsored programs must include the phrase “Equal
Opportunity/ Affirmative Action Employer.” The type of logo, statement or slogan
will depend on the type of media being used (visual or auditory). All
logos/statements must appear at the end of the advertisement.

14



VI. Analysis of Impediments
The town will cooperate and assist the state with its periodic Analysis of
Impediments and conduct a review of policies, practices and procedures that
affect the availability and accessibility of housing.

VII. Timetable
The Town of Wethersfield will carry out action steps within three years of the
adoption of this Plan.

VIII. Amendments
The Town Manager shall amend and revise this Plan as required to keep current with
state/federal affirmative action and equal opportunity policies and procedures and local
actions and activities to further the purposes of this Plan.

Frederick J. Presley 
Town Manager

DATE

15



16



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Appointments to Boards and Commissions

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Town Clerk

REQUESTED BY: Susan I. Schroeder, Town Clerk

ITEM: Appointments to Boards and Commissions

AGENDA ITEM NO. J.1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion to approve the appointment of John P. Gallivan of 72 Westwood Drive to the Citizens Recognition
Committee for a term of 6-5-2023 to 6-30-2025.

ATTACHMENTS:
B2b 2023-6-5 appointment.pdf

17

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1989087/B2b_2023-6-5_appointment.pdf


ITEM J1 
 FOR ACTION 

APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

CITIZENS RECOGNITION COMMITTEE 
Member 

John P. Gallivan D 72 Westwood Drive 6-5-2023 to 6-30-2025

Proposed by- 

Date of Action – June 5, 2023 

18



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Approve Meeting Minutes

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Town Clerk

REQUESTED BY: Susan I. Schroeder, Town Clerk

ITEM: Approve Meeting Minutes

AGENDA ITEM NO. J.2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion to Approve Special Meeting Minutes May 15, 2023
Motion to Approve Regular Meeting Minutes May 22, 2023

ATTACHMENTS:
2023-05-15 Special Meeting Minutes - Budget Adoption w Attach.pdf
2023-05-22r w Attach.pdf

19

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1979203/2023-05-15_Special_Meeting_Minutes_-_Budget_Adoption_w_Attach.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1979204/2023-05-22r_w_Attach.pdf


  May 15, 2023 Minutes 
  Page 1 

Unapproved 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
BUDGET DELIBERATIONS AND ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET 

MAY 15, 2023 
 

The Wethersfield Town Council held a Special Meeting for Budget Deliberations and Adoption of 
the Budget on May 15, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. from the Council Chambers of the Town Hall, 505 Silas 
Deane Highway, Wethersfield, Connecticut. 
 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance led by Councilor Lesser. 
 
PRESENT: Shelley Carbone, Cynthia Clancy, Matthew Forrest, Kevin Hill, Ken Lesser, Daniel J 
O'Connor, Patrick Pentalow, Thomas Mazzarella, and Michael Rell 
 
ABSENT: None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Frederick Presley, Town Manager, Susan I. Schroeder, Town Clerk, Michael 
O’Neil, Finance Director 
 
Mayor Rell thanked the staff and Board of Education for their work on the budget, as well as Mike 
O'Neil for his budget preparation. The Mayor compared the town budget to household budgets, with 
utilities and maintenance costs rising. Salary and healthcare costs are also up, as is inflation. The first 
version of the combined budget had a total proposed increase of 6.7%. All departments were looked 
at when they came before Council. The Council understands the departments' budgets and they had 
to choose wants v. needs. They kept most of what was asked for, but still had to cut a few needs. The 
budget isn't identical to what was proposed, but is a combination of the concerns of the residents and 
the staff. 
 
1. DELIBERATIONS - SETTING OF THE TOWN BUDGET 

 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: “THAT THE BUDGET AS SUBMITTED BY THE TOWN 
MANAGER ON APRIL 3, 2023 BE AND HEREBY IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS,” 

AMOUNT ($)              ACCOUNT 
INCREASE  21,884  41203 - BUILDING PERMITS 
INCREASE  300,000  47401 - INVESTMENT INCOME 
INCREASE  1,200,000  49002 - APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 
INCREASE  2,413                   120 - TOWN MANAGER 
INCREASE  22,538      140 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
DECREASE  3,988       150 - TOWN CLERK 
INCREASE  1,548      220 - FINANCE 
INCREASE  87,173      230 - TAX ASSESSOR 
DECREASE  2,166       240 - TAX COLLECTOR 
DECREASE  17,218      300 - PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
DECREASE  3,872        410 - BUILDING INSPECTIONS 
DECREASE 137,651       420 - POLICE 
INCREASE 22,811                    440 - FIRE MARSHAL 
INCREASE 121,015                  510 - ENGINEERING 

20

https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=40&meta_id=1043
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=40&meta_id=1067


  May 15, 2023 Minutes 
  Page 2 

Unapproved 
 

INCREASE 206,675                  520 - PHYSICAL SERVICES 
INCREASE 2,469                      620 - SOCIAL & YOUTH SERVICES 
DECREASE 11,195                   700 - PUBLIC LIBRARY 
DECREASE 9,932                     800 - PARKS & RECREATION 
DECREASE 160,000                 910 - CONTINGENCY 
DECREASE 800,582                 950 - TRANSFERS - CIP/CNEF 
DECREASE 545,000                 960 - RETIREE MEDICAL/OPEB 
 seconded by Patrick Pentalow. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  5-4-0. 
(Cynthia Clancy, Matthew Forrest, Kevin Hill, Ken Lesser voted Nay) 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: "THAT THE TOWN COUNCIL ADOPT THE TOWN BUDGET 
AS SUBMITTED BY THE TOWN MANAGER ON APRIL 3, 2023 AND AS AMENDED BY 
THE TOWN COUNCIL, IN THE SUM OF $56,546,645 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023." seconded by Daniel J O'Connor. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  5-4-0. 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: “THAT TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR LIBRARY 
PURPOSES BE SET AT $2,162,331 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 
2023." seconded by Patrick Pentalow. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: “THAT THE BUDGET AS SUBMITTED BY THE TOWN 
MANAGER ON APRIL 3, 2023 BE AND HEREBY IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: TO 
DECREASE THE REQUEST FOR SCHOOL PURPOSES BY $1,507,706." seconded by 
Patrick Pentalow. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  5-4-0. 
(Cynthia Clancy, Matthew Forrest, Kevin Hill, Ken Lesser voted Nay) 
 
Discussion, including Board Chair Charles Carey 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: “THAT THE TOTAL APPROPRIATION FOR SCHOOL 
PURPOSES BE SET AT $61,863,166 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 
2023." seconded by Patrick Pentalow. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  5-4-0. 
(Cynthia Clancy, Matthew Forrest, Kevin Hill, Ken Lesser voted Nay) 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: "THAT THE TOTAL APPROPRIATION FOR THE CAPITAL 
AND NONRECURRING ROAD FUND BE SET AT $2,100,000 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023." seconded by Daniel J O'Connor. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 

21



  May 15, 2023 Minutes 
  Page 3 

Unapproved 
 

Thomas Mazzarella motioned: "THAT THE TOTAL AMOUNT TO BE RAISED BY TAXES 
FOR TOWN, LIBRARY, SCHOOL AND CAPITAL AND NONRECURRING ROAD FUND 
PURPOSES COMBINED BE SET AT $98,072,949 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 
JULY 1, 2023” seconded by Patrick Pentalow. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  5-4-0. 
(Cynthia Clancy, Matthew Forrest, Kevin Hill, Ken Lesser voted Nay) 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: "THAT THE GENERAL FUND TAX RATE ON ALL REAL 
AND PERSONAL TAXABLE PROPERTY EXCLUDING MOTOR VEHICLES BE SET AT 
41.15 MILLS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023.” seconded by Daniel J 
O'Connor. 
 
Vote:  All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted.  The motion passed 5-4-0. 
Councilors Clancy, Forrest, Hill and Lesser voted NAY. 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: "THAT THE GENERAL FUND TAX RATE ON ALL MOTOR 
VEHICLE TAXABLE PROPERTY BE SET AT 31.97 MILLS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023." seconded by Patrick Pentalow. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: "THAT THE CAPITAL AND NON-RECURRING ROADS 
FUND TAX RATE ON ALL REAL AND PERSONAL TAXABLE PROPERTY EXCLUDING 
MOTOR VEHICLES BE SET AT .63 MILLS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 
1, 2023.” seconded by Patrick Pentalow. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: "THAT THE CAPITAL AND NON-RECURRING ROADS 
FUND TAX RATE ON ALL MOTOR VEHICLE TAXABLE PROPERTY BE SET AT .49 
MILLS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023.” seconded by Daniel J 
O'Connor. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 
Adjournment 
 
At 8:00 p.m. Patrick Pentalow motioned: "To ADJOURN THE MEETING." seconded by 
Matthew Forrest. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
Meeting Adjourned:  8:00 p.m.  
 
  

Susan I. Schroeder 
Town Clerk 

 

22

https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=40&meta_id=1102


23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



  May 8, 2023 Minutes 
  Page 1 

Unapproved 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
May 22, 2023 

 
The Wethersfield Town Council held a MEETING on May 22, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. from the Council 
Chambers of the Town Hall, 505 Silas Deane Highway, Wethersfield, Connecticut. 
A) Pledge of Allegiance led by Councilor Pentalow. 

 
B) Recording of Attendance by Town Clerk 

 
PRESENT: Shelley Carbone, Cynthia Clancy, Matthew Forrest, Kevin Hill, Ken Lesser, Daniel J 
O'Connor, Patrick Pentalow, Thomas Mazzarella, and Michael Rell 
 
ABSENT: None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Frederick Presley, Town Manager, Susan I. Schroeder, Town Clerk, Walter 
Topliff, Assessor, Matt Hart, Executive Director of CRCOG, Chris Monroe, USI Representative 
 
Presentations 
 
Capitol Region Council of Governments (CRCOG), Matt Hart, Executive Director 
 
Questions and discussion. 
 
C) Hearings - NONE 
 
D) Public Comment 

 
Judy Keane, 126 Broad Street was called to speak 
Robert Young, 20 Coppermill Road was called to speak 
 
E) Council Reports 
 
Ken Lesser was called to speak. Veterans Commission met May 10. Discussed creating a Suicide 
Hotline card. Memorial Day Parade and Ceremony information provided. Attended EDIC meeting. 
Wethersfield selected as 25th best town summer destination in the country. Heritage Commission 
created digital Historic Wethersfield billboards that will be going up to promote tourism. 
 
F) Council Comments 
 
Ken Lesser was called to speak. Highlighted upcoming Career Advisory Board breakfast featuring 
Wethersfield Business mentors and the high school student interns they worked with. 
 
Michael Rell was called to speak. Several upcoming dates were noted. May 25 - WECC's PEP 
graduation; May 27 - Memorial Day Parade and Ceremony; May 31 - Dollars for Scholars event; 
June 3 - Fireworks; June 5 - Laura's Garden Party event. 
 
G) Town Manager’s Report 

34

https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1255
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1257
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1259
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1262


  May 8, 2023 Minutes 
  Page 2 

Unapproved 
 

 
Frederick Presley, Town Manager was called to speak. Keane Foundation 5K Race scheduled June 4.  
 
H) Town Clerk Communications 
 
Susan Schroeder was called to speak. Updates on dog licensing provided. 
 
I) Bids 
 

I.1) Revaluation Bid Award 

 
Walter Topliff, Assessor was called to speak 
 
Patrick Pentalow motioned: "TO APPROVE THE 2023-11 BID AWARD FOR THE TOWN 
REVALUATION, IN THE AMOUNT OF $186,000 AND TO AUTHORIZE THE TOWN 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE 
PROJECT." seconded by Daniel J O'Connor. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 
J) Consent Agenda 

 
Matthew Forrest motioned: "TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA" seconded by Patrick 
Pentalow. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 

J.1) Contract Award - Employee Wellness Compliance Vendor 
Motion to award a contract for an employee wellness compliance vendor to WellSpark Health, 
Inc. pursuant to the terms outlined in the Request for Proposals dated January 19, 2023 and the 
responding proposal by WellSpark Health, Inc. 
 

J.2) Approve Meeting Minutes 
Motion to Approve Special Meeting Minutes dated May 1, 2023. 
Motion to Approve Special Meeting Minutes dated May 3, 2023. 
Motion to Approve Regular Meeting Minutes dated May 8, 2023. 
Motion to Approve Special Meeting Minutes dated May 9, 2023. 
 
K) Approval of Ordinances and Resolutions - NONE 
 
L) Unfinished Business 

 
L.1) American Rescue Plan Act Revenue Replacement Fund Allocation 

 
Thomas Mazzarella motioned: "TO BUDGET AND APPROPRIATE ARPA REVENUE 
REPLACEMENT FUNDS FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECTS: 
$15,000 FOR THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN; $69,000 FOR F350 

35

https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1274
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1282
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1299
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1300


  May 8, 2023 Minutes 
  Page 3 

Unapproved 
 

TRUCK WITH DUMP (PHYSICAL SERVICES); $125,000 FOR TOWN RADIO NETWORK 
SENTRY" seconded by Daniel J O'Connor. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  6-3-0. 
(Matthew Forrest, Kevin Hill, Ken Lesser voted Nay) 
 
M) New Business 
 

M.1) Introduction of Resolutions pertaining to the 2023 Small Cities Community 
Development Block Grant for improvements to the Harvey Fuller Senior Housing 
Complex owned by the Wethersfield Housing Authority. 

 
N) Public Comment 

 
Robert Young, 20 Coppermill Road was called to speak 
 
O) Executive Session 
 
Patrick Pentalow motioned: "TO ENTER EXECUTIVE SESSION" seconded by Michael Rell. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 

O.1) Discussion of Employee Contract(s) for individual officers or employees. 
 
Matthew Forrest motioned: "TO COME OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION" seconded by Daniel J 
O'Connor. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 
P) Adjourn 
 
Daniel J O'Connor motioned: "TO ADJOURN" seconded by Matthew Forrest. 
 
Vote: All Councilors present, including the Chairperson voted AYE. The motion passed  9-0-0. 
 
Meeting Adjourned:  8:40 p.m. 
 
  

Susan I. Schroeder 
Town Clerk 

 
 
 
 

PENDING:  APPROVED BY VOTE OF COUNCIL (             ) 
June 5, 2023 

 

36

https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1305
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1305
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1305
https://wethersfieldct.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=42&meta_id=1309


Ca p ito l 
Region  
Cou n cil o f 
Gover n m en ts

Matt Hart | Executive Director
37



Ke y I t e m s  
o f 

D is cu s s io n

Current 
Initiatives

What is 
CRCOG?

Benefits for 
Wethersfield

Questions?

38



Regional Councils of 
Governments 
(COGs)

• Regional Councils of Governments (COGs) 
provide a geographic framework for 
municipalities to jointly address interests, 
and coordinate the delivery of federal, state, 
& local programs

• COGs can also function as a Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (MPO) which 
oversees regional planning and 
implementation of federal transportation 
funding 

39



CR COG 
St r u ctu r e

Largest of state’s 9 COGs, serving 
38 municipalities with a population 
of almost 1M residents. Approx. 30 
employees in 4 departments.

Municipal Services & 
Administration - supports MSC and 
purchasing coalition. Conducts 
special projects & legislative 
advocacy.

Regional Planning & Development 
- staffs Regional Planning 
Commission. Administers 
Brownfields, land use & economic 
development programs.

40



CR COG 
St r u ctu r e

Transportation Planning - supports 
Transportation Committee and 
MPO with administration of federal 
& state transportation funds (TIP, 
LOTCIP). Conducts planning 
studies & projects that can become 
the basis for design & construction.

Public Safety & Homeland Security –
supports CREPC and administers 
federal & state grants providing 
funds for public safety, emergency 
management & public health. Staffs 
CRCOPA. 

41



CRCOG Committees

Derrick Gregor, 

Town Engineer

Transportation 

Committee

Mayor Michael Rell

Fred Presley, 

Town Manager

Policy Board
Richard Roberts

Regional Planning 

Committee

Fred Presley

Municipal Services 
Committee

Rafael Medina - Police Chief

Anthony Dignoti - EMD & Fire 

Marshal

Karen Tomczyk - Deputy EMD

Capitol Region 
Emergency Planning 
Council (CREPC)

42



Current Initiatives
Regional performance incentive program (animal control, 

assessment, code enforcement/building inspection)
 Infrastructure projects

• Safe Streets for All (SS4A)
• RAISE grant for Farmington Canal Heritage Trail
 Transit oriented development study
Waste management project/Central CT Solid Waste 

Authority

43



Five-Year Membership 
Benefits FY 2018-2022

5-year Benefits:
$3,840,885

5-year Dues:
$102,851

Wethersfield 

44



MAKES AN IMPACT

Use visual charts to communicate 
info more effectively.

LEVERAGING STATE 
AND FEDERAL 

FUNDING

Directed over $44 million of 
transportation spending, 

including $27 Million of federally 
funded projects ands $17 Million 
of State LOTCIP funded projects

Additional Commitments to fund 
nearly $26 million in LOTCIP 

Projects 

SUPPORTING PUBLIC 
SAFETY, HOMELAND 

SECURITY AND 
PUBLIC SAFETY

Administered State Homeland 
Security Grant Program funds for 

19th straight year

Brought in $1.2 M in grant funds 
by managing 14 local public 

health department/district 
subcontracts

45



MAKES AN IMPACT

Use visual charts to communicate 
info more effectively.

SAVING TIME AND 
MONEY

Purchasing Council saved 
members $1.92 million

EzIQC generated $11.1 million   
in Purchase orders

CONDUCTING 
PLANNING STUDIES

COMPLETED
East – West Rail Economic 

Impact Study 

INTIATED
Transit – Oriented 

Development (TOD) Analysis

46



CR COG 
An n u a l 
M e e t in g

J u n e  1 5 , 
2 0 2 3

47



THANK YOU

MHART@CRCOG.ORG

QUESTIONS

48



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
R23-001  Resolution Authorizing the Application for a

Connecticut Small Cities Community Development
Block Grant.

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Town Manager

REQUESTED BY: Frederick J. Presley, Town Manager in conjunction with Wethersfield Housing Authority

ITEM: R23-001  Resolution Authorizing the Application for a Connecticut Small Cities Community
Development Block Grant.

AGENDA ITEM NO. K.1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:

The resolution will authorize the Town of Wethersfield to submit an application for a Connecticut Small Cities
community Development Block Grant in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00 for improvements to the Harvey
Fuller Senior Housing complex owned by the Wethersfield Housing Authority.  

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:
Without approval of this resolution, the Town would not meet the application requirements for the funding.

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:
I recommend approval of Resolution R23-001.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion to approve Resolution R23-001 authorizing the application for a Connecticut Small CIties Community
Development Block Grant in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00 for improvements to the Harvey Fuller Senior
Housing Complex owned by the Wethersfield Housing Authority.

ATTACHMENTS:
R23-001 Certified Resolution CDBG Block Grant 2023.pdf

49

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984619/R23-001_Certified_Resolution_CDBG_Block_Grant_2023.pdf


Town of Wethersfield

Town Council

Resolution

Resolution No. R23-001

BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council THAT

WHEREAS, Federal monies are available under the Connecticut Small Cities Community
Development Block Grant Program, administered by the State of Connecticut, Department of
Housing pursuant to Public Law 93 -3 83, as amended; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 127c, and Part VI of Chapter 130 of the Connecticut
General Statutes, the Commissioner of Housing is authorized to disburse such Federal
monies to local municipalities, and,

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the public interest that the Town Wethersfield make an
application to the State for $2,000,000.00 in order to undertake a Small Cities Community
Development Program and to execute an Assistance Agreement therefore, should one be
offered.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Town of Wethersfield Town Council:

1. That it is cognizant of the conditions and prerequisites for State Assistance imposed by
Part VI of Chapter 130 of The Connecticut General Statutes; and,

2. That the filing of an application by the Town of Wethersfield in an amount not to exceed
$2,000,000.00 is hereby approved, and that the Town Manager is hereby authorized and
directed to file such Application with the Commissioner of the Department of Housing, to
provide such additional information, to execute such other documents as may be required by
the Commissioner, to execute an Assistance Agreement with the State of Connecticut for
State financial assistance if such an Agreement is offered, to execute any amendments,
rescissions, and revisions thereto, and to act as the authorized representative of the Town of

50



Wethersfield; and,

3. The Connecticut Small Cities Community Development Block Grant Program application
is for renovations at Harvey Fuller Senior Housing Complex, an existing 32-unit elderly and
disabled housing development. The proposed work will include, but is not limited to,
bathroom upgrades to both ADA and non-ADA units, replace interior bedroom and closet
doors, interior and exterior painting, replace mailboxes, install new exhaust fans throughout,
install mini-splits at each unit, install GFCI outlets throughout, new hardwired combination
smoke/co detectors, upgrade interior and exterior lighting, new call for aid system, replace
baseboard heat elements, remove rear steps and replace with ramps, replace
pavement/walkways/curbing, new light poles throughout, and installation of a generator.

Introduced By: ___________________________ Date: _____________

51



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
R23-002  Resolution Endorsing the updated Fair

Housing Policy for the Town of Wethersfield

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Town Manager

REQUESTED BY: Frederick J. Presley, Town Manager in conjunction with Wethersfield Housing Authority

ITEM: R23-002  Resolution Endorsing the updated Fair Housing Policy for the Town of
Wethersfield

AGENDA ITEM NO. K.2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:
An updated Fair Housing Policy is required as part of the 2023 Small Cities Community Development Block Grant
application.

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:
If not approved, the grant application cannot be submitted.

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:
I recommend approval of R23-002 to endorse the updated Fair Housing Policy.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion to approve Resolution R23-002 endorsing the updated Fair Housing Policy for the Town of Wethersfield.

ATTACHMENTS:
R23-002 Certified Resolution 2023 Fair Housing Action Plan.docx.pdf

52

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984623/R23-002_Certified_Resolution_2023_Fair_Housing_Action_Plan.docx.pdf


00.2 FHAP

Town of Wethersfield
Connecticut

Fair Housing

Action Plan

2023

Frederick J. Presley
Town Manager

53



TOWN OF Wethersfield
Town Council

Resolution No. R23-002
BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council THAT

Whereas, All persons are afforded a right to full and equal housing opportunities in the
neighborhood of their choice; and

Whereas, Federal fair housing laws require that all individuals, regardless of race, color,
religion, sex, handicap, gender identity or expression, familial status or national
origin, be given equal access to all housing-related opportunities, including rental
and homeownership opportunities, and be allowed to make free choices
regarding housing location; and

Whereas, Connecticut fair housing laws require that all individuals, regardless of race,
creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, marital status, age, lawful source of
income, familial status, learning disability, physical or mental disability, sexual
orientation, or gender identity or expression be given equal access to all
housing-related opportunities, including rental and home ownership
opportunities, and be allowed to make free choices regarding housing location;
and

Whereas, The Town of Wethersfield is committed to upholding these laws, and realizes that
these laws must be supplemented by an Affirmative Statement publicly endorsing
the right of all people to full and equal housing opportunities in the neighborhood
of their choice.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Town of Wethersfield hereby endorses a Fair
Housing Policy to ensure equal opportunity for all persons to rent, purchase, obtain financing
and enjoy all other housing-related services of their choice on a non-discriminatory basis as
provided by state and federal law; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Town of Wethersfield hereby endorses a Fair Housing
Action Plan to incorporate the directives of State and Federal laws and Executive Orders to
provide and promote racial and economic integration in any housing development financially
supported with DOH funding and will take affirmative steps to reach beneficiaries from all
groups and to reach a broad range of income eligible beneficiaries for appropriate and
applicable housing opportunities.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Town Manager of the Town of Wethersfield or his/her
designated representative is responsible for responding to and assisting any person who
alleges to be the victim of an illegal discriminatory housing practice in the Town of Wethersfield
and for advising such person of the right to file a complaint with the State of Connecticut
Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities (CHRO) or the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) or to seek assistance from the CT Fair Housing Center, legal
services, or other fair housing organizations to protect his or her right to equal housing
opportunities.

Introduced By: _________________________________ Adopted: _______________

54



FAIR HOUSING ACTION PLAN

TOWN OF Wethersfield

I. Policy Statement
It shall be the policy and commitment of the Town of Wethersfield to ensure that
fair and equal housing opportunities are granted to all persons, in all housing
opportunities and development activities funded by the town, regardless of race,
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, marital
status, lawful source of income, familial status, national origin, ancestry, age or
mental or physical disability. This shall be done through a program of education,
an analysis of impediments, and designation of a Fair Housing Officer and
development of a procedure for complaints of discrimination. This plan will
incorporate the directives of state and federal laws and executive orders,
including, but not limited to:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
The Fair Housing Act – Title VIII of the Civil Rights Action of 1968, as amended
Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259
Section 104(b) of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of

1974, as amended
Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of

1974, as amended
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended
Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended
Executive Order 11246 (as amended by Executive Orders 12375 and 12086)

Equal Opportunity under HUD contracts and HUD-assisted Construction
Contracts

Executive Order 12892, Leadership and Coordination of Fair
Housing Connecticut General Statutes 46a-64c as amended

The Town of Wethersfield commits to providing and promoting racial and
economic integration in any housing development financially supported with DOH
funding and will take affirmative steps to reach beneficiaries from all racial and
ethnic groups as well as the physically or mentally handicapped and families with
children and to reach a broad range of income eligible beneficiaries for
appropriate and applicable housing opportunities.

55



II. Selection of Fair Housing Officer
In accordance with Title VIII, Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended, the Fair
Housing Officer below has been designated to handle fair housing complaints
and activities

Frederick Presley
Town Manager

Town of Wethersfield
505 Silas Deane Hwy
Wethersfield, CT 06109

860-721-2801
The Fair Housing Officer is responsible for the intake and processing of all
housing complaints as well as implementation of the Fair Housing Plan activities
and actions. While not expected to be an “expert” in Fair Housing Laws, at a
minimum, the officer will be familiar with the complaint process and federal and
state laws, which address Fair Housing. Records which show the date, time,
nature of complaint and decisions made in the complaint process will be fully
documented. A separate file will maintain a record of all housing discrimination
complaints and follow-up actions.

III. Complaint Process
Housing discrimination complaint forms such as Forms HUD-903 and HUD-903A
(Spanish version) from HUD, as well as, a summary of actions which may
constitute housing discrimination, and instructions for completing and filing
housing discrimination complaints will be made available to citizens at Town of
Wethersfield, Town Manager’s Office, 505 Silas Deane Hwy, Wethersfield, CT
06109. Complaints need not be made on official forms to be valid.

Forms will also be distributed to lenders, realtors, and at other public places such
as the Library periodically.

The Fair Housing Officer will reasonably assist the complainant in submitting the
complaint to the appropriate body by providing assistance in explaining the form
and/or contacting the appropriate office and allowing the use of town phones for
communication.

The individual(s) filing the complaint will then be advised of the option of filing
directly with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
within one year after an alleged violation, the Connecticut Commission on
Human Rights and Opportunities (CHRO) by filing a notarized complaint within
180 days of the alleged violation, or the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission or with all agencies simultaneously. The individual should also be
advised of the option of filing suit, at his/her expense in Federal District Court or
State Court within two years of an alleged violation. The individual should be
further advised that if he/she cannot afford an attorney, the Court may appoint
one and that a suit may be commenced even after filing a complaint, if the
individual has not signed a conciliation agreement and an Administrative Law
Judge has not started a hearing. A court may award actual and punitive damages
and attorney's fees and costs.

56



The Fair Housing Officer will keep a record of the progress on the number of
complaints filed, actions taken, and the status of each complaint.

IV. Opportunity Mapping
Using the Connecticut Opportunity Map, which is available at the DOH website,
the town has determined that the Town of Wethersfield is a Moderate area while
a portion is a Low area. The target area for the proposed 2023 project or activity
is located in a Very Low area.

V. Implementation and Action Steps
The town will take specific action steps and implementation activities over the
next three-year period following the guidelines provided by DOH.

Action Steps 1, 2, 9, 10, 11 or 12 (Set I)
Minimum (1) selection
11 Appoint a fair housing officer, have him or her trained on their duties and

responsibilities as a fair housing officer, and publicize the person’s name,
contact information, and job responsibilities.

Action Steps 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 13, 14 or 15 (Set II)
Minimum (1) selection
13 Refer complaints of housing discrimination to HUD, CHRO, or a private fair

housing agency.

Additional Steps
The Town of Wethersfield will adopt annually a Fair Housing Policy Statement
and a Fair Housing Resolution as an indication of its commitment to Fair Housing
Month during the month of April.

The Town of Wethersfield will display its fair housing policies/procedures and
ADA policies and grievance procedures on its website.

The Town of Wethersfield will display Fair Housing posters identifying the town’s
Fair Housing Officer, title, address and phone number in prominent locations. In
addition, fair housing information will be distributed outside of traditional
municipal locations including local realtors and banks.

All advertising of residential real estate owned by the Town of Wethersfield for
sale, rent or financing will contain the Fair Housing logo, equal opportunity
slogan as a means of educating the home seeking public that the property is
available to all persons regardless of race, color, religion, sex, mental or physical
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, familial status, marital
status, national origin, age, ancestry, or lawful source of income. All bid
advertisements by town sponsored programs must include the phrase “Equal
Opportunity/ Affirmative Action Employer.” The type of logo, statement or slogan
will depend on the type of media being used (visual or auditory). All
logos/statements must appear at the end of the advertisement.

57



VI. Analysis of Impediments
The town will cooperate and assist the state with its periodic Analysis of
Impediments and conduct a review of policies, practices and procedures that
affect the availability and accessibility of housing.

VII. Timetable
The Town of Wethersfield will carry out action steps within three years of the
adoption of this Plan.

VIII. Amendments
The Town Manager shall amend and revise this Plan as required to keep current with
state/federal affirmative action and equal opportunity policies and procedures and local
actions and activities to further the purposes of this Plan.

Frederick J. Presley 
Town Manager

DATE

58



59



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Authorize the Town to submit the Community

Investment Fund Grant Application for Welcome to
Wethersfield.

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Economic Development

REQUESTED BY: Gioia Zack, Economic Development Director

ITEM: Authorize the Town to submit the Community Investment Fund Grant Application for
Welcome to Wethersfield.

AGENDA ITEM NO. M.1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:
This grant would fund improvements to Wethersfield’s Main Street area as well as the Heritage Way trail which
runs throughout the town, in order to continue efforts to improve safety, multimodal accessibility, promote
community connectivity to make the Town of Wethersfield safe and inviting for all residents, businesses and
visitors regardless of accessibility, language or other needs of all populations, especially the underserved.  

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:
The grant application would not be submitted and the improvements would not happen unless the town found other
budget resources to fund them.

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:
This grant application is part of a larger vision of investing in the future of the town branded as “Wethersfield 400”
whereby multiple projects will be submitted for consideration over multiple rounds of the Community Investment
Fund.  This specific grant application, entitled “Welcome to Wethersfield”, will request funds of up to
$9,000,000.00 to move the town toward completing its vision for the Main Street area by creating a sense of place
upon arrival, establishing a more prominent welcome center for residents and visitors to learn about town offerings,
improving wayfinding and interpretive signage and fully connecting and completing the Heritage Way trail.  These
improvements will be a valuable resource for tourists as well as residents.  The goals are to include information
about town related services for all residents, communicate and promote events for all through various modes of
enhanced outreach, update the wayfinding and interpretive signage so they are multilingual and accessible friendly
for anyone who may have hearing, sight or other impairments.  The funds will also be used to create and enhance
public gathering locations to promote community engagement, complete the multimodal trail and  continue to
improve safety and accessibility for all. 

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:
I recommend approval of the motion to authorize the Community Investment Fund grant application submission.

60



ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion to authorize the Town of Wethersfield to apply for a State of Connecticut Community Investment Fund
grant up to $9,000,000.00 for improvements to the Main Street area for a grant application entitled “Welcome to
Wethersfield”.

ATTACHMENTS:
OW CIF2023 Prelim Plan 06-01-23 Rev1.pdf

61

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1986987/OW_CIF2023_Prelim_Plan_06-01-23_Rev1.pdf


FIRST SCHOOL
SOCIETY VILLAGE

CEMETERY

FUTURE HERITAGE W
AY TRAIL

BROAD S
TR

EE
T

MARSH STREET

11

2

LUCKY LOU'S
RESTAURANT
222 MAIN ST

14
15

76 MARSH ST

KEENEY
MEMORIAL

CENTER
200 MAIN ST

HURLBURT-DUNHAM
HOUSE

212 MAIN ST

BUTTOLPH-WILLIAMS
HOUSE

249 BROAD ST

FIRST CHURCH
OF CHRIST

250-276 MAIN ST

M
AI

N 
ST

RE
ET

4

9
12

12

22

12

13

13

13

8

26

11

9

246 BROAD ST

6

CHURCHSTREET

±1
2'

13

5

6

11PA
RK

IN
G L

OT 
RE

SE
RV

ED

FO
R 

TH
E 

CH
AR

LE
S 

RE
ST

AU
RA

NT

9

10

16

6

6

7

9

9

FIRE
STATION 1

171 MAIN ST

163-169
MAIN ST

THE CHARLES
161 MAIN ST

OLD TOWN CAFE
& LUNA PIZZA

181-189 MAIN ST

WEBB DEANE
STEVENS MUSEUM

203-215 MAIN ST

CENTER STREET

EXISTING
RAISED/DECORATIVE

CROSSWALK WITH CURB
BUMP-OUTS

EXISTING LIMITS OF KEENEY
DRIVEWAY RECONSTRUCTION
AND SIDEWALK INSTALLATION

10' WIDE PAVED MULTI-USE
TRAIL FUNDED BY DOT
LOTCIP PROGRAM (TYP.)

INTERSECTION RE-ALIGNMENT AND
CONCRETE SIDEWALKS FUNDED BY

DOT LOTCIP PROGRAM (TYP.)

10' WIDE PAVED MULTI-USE
TRAIL FUNDED BY DOT
LOTCIP PROGRAM (TYP.)

POTENTIAL CURB
RELOCATION FUNDED
BY DOT LOTCIP
PROGRAM (TYP.)

TOWN OF WETHERSFIELD
CIF 2030 APPLICATION

WELCOME TO WETHERSFIELD PROJECT
PRELIMINARY CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

6/1/23

LIMIT OF ROAD RECONSTRUCTION
FUNDED BY DOT LOTCIP

PROGRAM (TYP.)

APPROX. TOWN
WETLAND LIMIT

TIMBER RAIL (TYP.)

PARKING LOT RECONSTRUCTION AND EXPANSION
(TOWN PROPERTY, INCLUDES CONCRETE CURB,
LIGHTING, LANDSCAPING AND DRAINAGE)
EXIST SPACES = 100
PROP SPACES = 160
NET SPACES = +60

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

PARKING AREA CONSTRUCTION
(TOWN R.O.W.,  INCLUDES
CONCRETE CURB, LIGHTING,
LANDSCAPING AND DRAINAGE)
EXIST SPACES = 0
PROP SPACES = 17
NET SPACES = +17

RELOCATE CONCRETE CURB  (TYP.)

PAINT 11' TRAVEL LANES
WITH 2' SHOULDERS

PARKING LOT RECONSTRUCTION AND
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS (TOWN
PROPERTY, INCLUDES CONCRETE CURB,
LIGHTING, LANDSCAPING AND DRAINAGE)
EXIST SPACES = 29
PROP SPACES = 29
NET SPACES = +0

PAVED DRIVEWAY
APRON (TYP.)

RAISED DECORATIVE
CROSSWALK AND
SIGNAGE AT TRAIL
CROSSING

PARKING AREA CONSTRUCTION
(TOWN R.O.W., INCLUDES CONCRETE
CURB, LIGHTING, LANDSCAPING
AND DRAINAGE)
EXIST SPACES = 0
PROP SPACES = 6
NET SPACES = +6

BIKE REPAIR AREA

EXISTING
BASKETBALL
COURT TO BE

RELOCATED

10' WIDE PAVED MULTI-USE
TRAIL FUNDED BY DOT
LOTCIP PROGRAM (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CURB

MILL AND OVERLAY
PAVEMENT

REMOVE
EXCESS
PAVEMENT

PARKING LOT RECONSTRUCTION
AND EXPANSION (TOWN AND

PRIVATE PROPERTY, INCLUDES
CONCRETE CURB, LIGHTING,

LANDSCAPING AND DRAINAGE)
EXIST SPACES = 49

PROP SPACES = 107 (INCL. 18 AT FS-1)
NET SPACES = +58

STONE
DUST
PATH

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
AND DRIVEWAY APRON
(TYP.)

CONCRETE
CURB (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CURB (TYP.)

CONCRETE
PAD

62



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Authorization to apply for a State Community

Investment Fund Grant for Improvements to the
William J. Pitkin Community Center Complex.

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Parks & Recreation

REQUESTED BY: Kathy A. Bagley, Director of Parks & Recreation

ITEM: Authorization to apply for a State Community Investment Fund Grant for Improvements to
the William J. Pitkin Community Center Complex.

AGENDA ITEM NO. M.2

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:
This grant would fund improvements to the William J. Pitkin Community Complex which includes improvements
to the community center, reconstructing and expanding adjoining parking lots, installing handicap parking for the
Greenfield Playground and reconstructing the access road and sidewalk to Willard Pool.  Currently no funds are
available for these improvements. 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:
The grant would not be submitted and the improvements would not happen unless the town found other budget
resources to fund them.

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:
This grant application is part of a larger vision for the town branded as “Wethersfield 400” whereby multiple
projects will be submitted for consideration over multiple rounds.  This specific grant application, entitled
“Community Center” will request funds of up to $6,000,000 to improve this Parks and Recreation facility.  The
improvements in the Community Center include replacement of the HVAC unit in the banquet room, installation of
a sprinkler system in the building, renovations to the community center rooms, adding an additional parking lot to
allow senior citizens closer access to their meeting rooms in the west wing, constructing additional parking,
including an increase in handicap parking spaces, site lighting, and improved drop-off/pick-up area with better
accessibility at all entrances.  Also included are installing handicap parking spaces adjacent to Greenfield
playground and Willard pool driveway and sidewalk reconstruction.  The community center was last renovated in
1996.  This renovation will provide better accessibility for everyone using the facility.  Over 115,000 individuals
access this facility each year to participate in the wide range of activities, events and services offered. 

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:
I recommend approval of the motion to authorize the Community Investment Fund grant application submission.

ACTION REQUIRED:

63



ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion to authorize the Town of Wethersfield to apply for a State of Connecticut Community Investment Fund
grant up to $6,000,000 for improvements to the William J. Pitkin Community Complex.

ATTACHMENTS:
CommCenter-SiteImprovements-Plan_12-28-22.pdf

64

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984588/CommCenter-SiteImprovements-Plan_12-28-22.pdf


20
20

11

11

4

14

11

8

5

9

4

11

9

5

17

5

4

9

4

4

3

6

DUMPSTERENCLOSURE

RAMP

6

2

3

6

EXISTING LIGHT
POLE TO REMAIN
(TYP.)

WILLIAM J. PITKIN
COMMUNITY COMPLEX

30 GREENFIELD STREET

GREENFIELD STREET

NOTT STREET

PARK

AVENUE

WILLARD POOL

GRAVEL
PARKING LOT

PLAYGROUND

BASKETBALL
COURTS

BASEBALL /
SOFTBALL

FIELD

NORTH WING
(INCL. BANQUET

ROOM)

WEST
WING

EAST
WING

PROJECT 2
PARKING LOT
EXPANSION

PROJECT 4
PARKING & WALKWAY

FOR ACCESSIBLE
PLAYGROUND AND

WILLARD POOL

LEW
IS STREET

PROJECT 1
RENOVATION
OF BUILDING -
NORTH WING

LOBBY

FIRESIDE
ROOM

GYM

PROJECT 3
RENOVATION
OF BUILDING
- WEST WING

PROJECT 3
RENOVATION
OF BUILDING
- EAST WING

ONE SET OF DOUBLE
DOORS (TYP.)

TWO SETS OF DOUBLE
DOORS (TYP.)

8' WIDE CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

8' WIDE CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

5' WIDE CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

LIGHT POLE
(TYP.)

BITUMINOUS CONCRETE LIP CURB
(WHERE APPROPRIATE, TYP.)

LANDSCAPED
AREA (TYP.)

PROPOSED NUMBER
OF PARKING SPACES
(TYP.)

RELOCATED HANDICAP
PARKING SPACES

INTEGRAL CONCRETE
SIDEWALK & CURB

FOR DROP-OFF/PICKUP

INTEGRAL CONCRETE
SIDEWALK & CURB
FOR DROP-OFF/PICKUP

INTEGRAL CONCRETE
SIDEWALK & CURB

INTEGRAL CONCRETE
SIDEWALK & CURB

INTEGRAL CONCRETE
SIDEWALK & CURB

RECONSTRUCT DRIVEWAY
AND BITUMINOUS
CONCRETE LIP CURB

RECONSTRUCT PARKING
LOT AND BITUMINOUS
CONCRETE LIP CURB

EXPAND PARKING LOT AND
INSTALL BITUMINOUS
CONCRETE LIP CURB

FLUSH CONCRETE
SIDEWALK AT
DROP-OFF/PICK-UP AREA

NO PARKING - LOADING ZONE
(ACCESS TO KITCHEN)

HANDICAP
PARKING
SPACES

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT FUND - STATE GRANT PROPOSAL
WILLIAM J. PITKIN COMMUNITY COMPLEX

FACILITY AND SITE IMPROVEMENTS
30 GREENFIELD STREET

DRAWN BY:   JM
CHECKED BY:  JM
APPROVED BY:  DG

TOWN OF WETHERSFIELD
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

ENGINEERING DIVISION
505 SILAS DEANE HIGHWAY
WETHERSFIELD, CT 06109

REVISIONS

No. COMMENTS

1
Sheet No.

CONCEPTUAL PROJECT PLAN
DATE: XX/XX/XX
SCALE: 1" = 40' OR

AS NOTED

DATE

DWG FILE: COMMCENTER-SITEIMPROVEMENTS.DWG

SCALE: 1" = 40'

of 1
* PARKING COUNTS FOR WILLARD POOL DO NOT INCLUDE GRAVEL PARKING AREA

PRELIMINARY

12/28/22

PARKING SUMMARY

PROJECT
EXISTING

HC SPACES

EXISTING
STANDARD

SPACES

TOTAL
EXISTING
SPACES

PROPOSED
HC SPACES

PROPOSED
STANDARD

SPACES

TOTAL
PROPOSED

SPACES

PROJECT 2 - PARKING LOT EXPANSION 5 152 157 17 187 204

PROJECT 4 - PARKING & WALKWAY FOR
                         ACCESSIBLE PLAYGROUND
                         AND WILLARD POOL*

3 N/A 3 7 N/A 7

TOTAL: 8 152 160 24 187 211

NET: - - - +16 +35 +51

Q
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

To
w

n 
B

ui
ld

in
gs

\C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
te

r\S
ite

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (C
IF

 2
03

0 
A

pp
)\C

om
m

C
en

te
r-

Si
te

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 1

2/
28

/2
02

2 
12

:0
0:

23
 P

M
, d

gr
eg

or

65

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
120



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Authorization to Apply for a Safe Streets and Roads

for All (SS4A) Grant.

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Engineering

REQUESTED BY: Derrick Gregor, Town Engineer Presented By Vlada Shelkova, Capital Improvements
Project Administrator

ITEM: Authorization to Apply for a Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Grant.

AGENDA ITEM NO. M.3

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:
Authorization to submit joint application, with Wethersfield as lead applicant and Rocky Hill as co-applicant, for a
Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) grant which was established by the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) and
supports the U.S. Department of Transportation’s National Roadway Safety Strategy.
 
The SS4A Grant Program assists communities in developing and funding transportation safety and equity projects
that have significant local and regional impact. This grant will enable the Towns of Wethersfield and Rocky Hill to
work closely together to identify and improve the most appropriate and effective enhancements to the Silas Deane
Highway corridor. 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:
The grant application would not be submitted and the improvements would not occur unless the town found other
budget resources to fund the study and demonstrations.

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:
Enhancing safety, accessibility, and landscaping of the Silas Deane Highway is a critical concern for both the
Towns of Wethersfield and Rocky Hill. The SS4A grant application will request funds for a total project amount of
up to $1,100,000 to conduct planning activities including a full traffic study, environmental assessment,
comprehensive public engagement and input process, topographical survey, right-of-way determination, and project
design for improvements along the Silas Deane Highway. Funds would also be used for demonstration activities to
test safety countermeasures between Church Street and Wells Road, including intersections.

This initiative will produce studies and provide the appropriate information needed to move forward with updating
the Silas Deane Highway improvements strategy and moving to implement the necessary changes needed to better
safety, accessibility, and appeal. 

66



If awarded, up to a $220,000 match will be required for this grant between the Towns of Wethersfield and Rocky
Hill. Match contribution sources would include in-kind and then capital improvement funds to cover the difference.

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:
I recommend approval of the motion to authorize the Town of Wethersfield to apply for a Safe Streets and Roads for
All Grant up to $1,100,000 for a planning study and demonstration activities for Silas Deane Highway.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion to authorize the Town of Wethersfield to apply for a Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant up to $1,100,000
for a planning study and demonstration activities for Silas Deane Highway.

ATTACHMENTS:
SDHCorridor-Phase1DemonstrationPlan_Rev05-26-23.pdf

67

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1984593/SDHCorridor-Phase1DemonstrationPlan_Rev05-26-23.pdf


SILAS DEANE HWY (RTE 99)

POTENTIAL TOWN
RECREATIONAL AREA

AND PARKING LOT

FUTURE PULL-OFF AREA
FOR EXISTING BUS STOP

BUS PULL-OFF

POTENTIAL TROLLEY / SHUTTLE
PICKUP & DROP-OFF  AREA FOR

LOOP TO MAIN ST IN OLD
WETHERSFIELD

B
E

A
V

E
R

 R
O

A
D

(O
N

E
-W

A
Y

)

FUTURE PAINTED CROSSWALK
AND CONCRETE SIDEWALK

RAMP (TYP. OF 2)

POTENTIAL ACQUISITION
OF PROPERTY BY TOWN

FUTURE PULL-OFF AREA
FOR EXISTING BUS STOP

FUTURE CONCRETE SIDEWALK
AROUND BUS STOP (REQ'D TO

KEEP BUS OUT OF TRAVEL LANE)

PULL-OFF AREA AT EXISTING BUS STOP
WITH TEMPORARY PAVEMENT AND
BITUMINOUS CONCRETE LIP CURB
(NON-PARTICIPATING - FUNDED BY TOWN)

BUS PULL-OFF

PULL-OFF AREA AT EXISTING BUS STOP
WITH TEMPORARY PAVEMENT AND
BITUMINOUS CONCRETE LIP CURB
(NON-PARTICIPATING - FUNDED BY TOWN)

#729-725

#708
#718

#687
#685

#683

#679
#677

#673

#657 #601

#600

#610-612
#614-620#626-623

#638-642

#662#672

#25
WELLS RD

S
O

M
E

R
S

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
TW

E
L

L
S

 R
O

A
D

(R
T

E
 1

7
5

)

B
Y

R
D

 R
O

A
D

CHRIST THE
KING CHURCH

COMBINE EXISTING BUS STOP
WITH STOP LOCATED NORTH OF
THE INTERSECTION (PENDING
CTtransit APPROVAL)

COMBINE EXISTING BUS STOP
WITH STOP LOCATED NORTH OF
THE INTERSECTION (PENDING
CTtransit APPROVAL)

'KEEP RIGHT' SIGN
ON MOVEABLE BASE
(DOT #31-1536)

'KEEP RIGHT' SIGN
ON MOVEABLE BASE
(DOT #31-1536)'KEEP RIGHT' SIGN

ON MOVEABLE BASE
(DOT #31-1536)

PAINTED 12" WHITE CROSSWALK LINES WITH COLORED
TRAVEL PATH ACROSS INTERSECTION (10' WIDE, TYP.)

NEW PAINTED STOP BAR

BLACK OUT EXISTING ARROWS, AND
YELLOW AND WHITE PAVEMENT

MARKINGS OUTSIDE OF NEW
PAVEMENT MARKING LIMITS

(TYP.)

11'
11'

11.5'
11'

11.5'

15'

15'
15.5'

11.5'

11.5'

11.5'
11'

4'

4' 2'

11'
11.5'

16'
11.5'

11'

LIMITS OF FUTURE RAISED ISLANDS
IDENTIFIED BY YELLOW PAINT AND

MOVEABLE VERTICAL DELINEATORS TO
PROVIDE A PEDESTRIAN REFUGE FOR
FUTURE MID-BLOCK CROSSING (TYP.)

'KEEP RIGHT' SIGN
ON MOVEABLE BASE
(DOT #31-1536)

LIMITS OF FUTURE RAISED ISLAND
IDENTIFIED BY YELLOW PAINT AND
MOVEABLE VERTICAL DELINEATORS
AT SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION

MATCH EXISTING
PAVEMENT
MARKINGS (TYP.)

TEMPORARY PAVED SIDEWALK RAMP WITH
DETECTABLE WARNING TILE

(NON-PARTICIPATING - FUNDED BY TOWN)
REMOVE CONCRETE SIDEWALK RAMP AND
INSTALL BITUMINOUS CONCRETE LIP CURB

(NON-PARTICIPATING - FUNDED BY TOWN)

REMOVE CONCRETE SIDEWALK RAMP AND
INSTALL BITUMINOUS CONCRETE LIP CURB

(NON-PARTICIPATING - FUNDED BY TOWN)

SILAS DEANE HWY (RTE 99)

TEMPORARY PAVED SIDEWALK RAMP
WITH DETECTABLE WARNING TILE

(NON-PARTICIPATING - FUNDED BY TOWN,
TYP. OF 2)

BUS PULL-OFF

B
E

A
V

E
R

 R
O

(O
N

E
-W

A
Y

FUTURE BUS STOP
RELOCATION

(PENDING CTtransit
APPROVAL)

FUTURE PULL-OFF AREA
FOR EXISTING BUS STOP

PULL-OFF AREA AT NEW BUS STOP
LOCATION WITH TEMPORARY PAVEMENT

AND BITUMINOUS CONCRETE LIP CURB AND
NARROW DRIVEWAY APRON WITH CURB

(NON-PARTICIPATING - FUNDED BY TOWN)

BUS PULL-OFF

PULL-OFF AREA AT NEW BUS STOP LOCATION
WITH TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, BITUMINOUS

CONCRETE LIP CURB AND NEW TYPE CL CB TOP,
NARROW DRIVEWAY APRON WITH CURB

(NON-PARTICIPATING - FUNDED BY TOWN)

#551
#505

#475

#486

#496-500

#506

#512-516

#530
#526#540

#554

#564

#574

#580

#462

#472-474

C
H

U
R

C
H

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
H

U
R

C
H

S
T

R
E

E
T

TOWN HALL
AND LIBRARY

SILAS DEANE
MIDDLE
SCHOOL

POTENTIAL TROLLEY /
SHUTTLE PICKUP &

DROP-OFF  AREA FOR
LOOP TO MAIN ST IN
OLD WETHERSFIELD

CORPUS
CHRISTI
SCHOOL

POTENTIAL TROLLEY /
SHUTTLE PICKUP &
DROP-OFF  AREA FOR
LOOP TO MAIN ST IN
OLD WETHERSFIELD

RELOCATE
BUS STOP
(PENDING
CTtransit

APPROVAL)

PAINTED 4" DASHED WHITE BIKE LANES WITH
COLORED TRAVEL PATH THROUGH

INTERSECTION TO LIMITS SHOWN (5' WIDE, TYP.)

LIMITS OF FUTURE RAISED ISLAND
IDENTIFIED BY YELLOW PAINT AND

MOVEABLE VERTICAL DELINEATORS AT
SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION (TYP. OF 2)

4" PAINTED YELLOW PAVEMENT
MARKING (TYP.)

BLACK OUT EXISTING AND PAINT NEW
ARROWS, STOP BAR, AND DOUBLE
YELLOW AND WHITE LINES TO DELINEATE
SHOULDERS FOR BIKE ROUTE

BLACK OUT EXISTING ARROWS, AND
YELLOW AND WHITE PAVEMENT

MARKINGS OUTSIDE OF NEW
PAVEMENT MARKING LIMITS

(TYP.)

BLACK OUT EXISTING CROSSWALK (RELOCATION
REQ'D DUE TO HIGH PEDESTRIAN/STUDENT USE

AND INADEQUATE SIGHTLINE FROM CHURCH ST)

LIMITS OF FUTURE RAISED ISLAND IDENTIFIED
BY YELLOW PAINT AND MOVEABLE VERTICAL

DELINEATORS TO PROVIDE A PEDESTRIAN
REFUGE AT SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION (TYP.)

BLACK OUT EXISTING
CROSSWALK AND STOP BAR

NEW PAINTED CROSSWALK
AND STOP BAR

LIMITS OF FUTURE RAISED ISLAND IDENTIFIED
BY YELLOW PAINT AND MOVEABLE VERTICAL
DELINEATORS TO PREVENT LEFT TURNS
ONTO BEAVER RD

'KEEP RIGHT' SIGN ON MOVEABLE
BASE  (DOT #31-1536)

'KEEP RIGHT' SIGN
ON MOVEABLE BASE
(DOT #31-1536)

OBJECT MARKER SIGN
ON MOVEABLE BASE
(MUTCD #OM1-1)

PAINTED ARROWS, AND DOUBLE
YELLOW AND WHITE PAVEMENT

MARKING LINES (TYP.)
RELOCATE BUS STOP

(PENDING CTtransit
APPROVAL)

BLACK OUT EXISTING AND PAINT NEW
ARROWS, STOP BAR, AND DOUBLE

YELLOW AND WHITE LINES TO DELINEATE
SHOULDERS FOR BIKE ROUTE

PAINTED GREEN
BIKE LANE (TYP.)

11'
11.5'

16'
11.5'

11'

15.5'

11'
11'

15.5'
12.5'

11'

11'
11.5'

11.5'
11'

11'
13'

2'

13'

4' 2'

BLACK OUT EXISTING STOP BAR AND
CROSSWALK (NEW LOCATION REQ'D
DUE TO HIGH PEDESTRIAN/STUDENT

USE AND INADEQUATE SIGHTLINE FROM
CHURCH ST)

5'

11'
11'

11.5'
4'

2' 11'
11.5'

4" PAINTED WHITE
PAVEMENT
MARKINGS (TYP.)

MATCH EXISTING
PAVEMENT MARKINGS

(TYP.)

PAINTED 12" WHITE CROSSWALK LINES WITH COLORED
TRAVEL PATH ACROSS INTERSECTION (10' WIDE, TYP.)

TOWN OF WETHERSFIELD

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN OF
DEMONSTRATION PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS ALONG

SILAS DEANE HIGHWAY FROM
WELLS ROAD TO CHURCH STREET

MAY 25, 2023
REV. 5/26/23

1"=50'

NOTES:
1. IF TRAFFIC DETECTION LOOPS DO NOT ALIGN WITH

LANES FOR NEW PAVEMENT MARKINGS, MODIFY TRAFFIC
SIGNAL TO OPERATE ON A STANDARD CYCLE.

2. THE TOWN PROPOSES TO FUND SOME IMPROVEMENTS IN
CRITICAL LOCATIONS WHERE SS4A DEMONSTRATION
FUNDS CANNOT BE USED.  THIS WORK IS REQUIRED TO
PROPERLY ADDRESS PUBLIC SAFETY ISSUES IN THE
NEAR TERM AND IS NOTED AS "NON-PARTICIPATING" ON
THE PLAN.

3. POTENTIAL FUTURE IMPROVEMENTS ARE SHOWN ONLY
FOR GENERAL INFORMATION AND ARE NOT INCLUDED IN
THIS FUNDING REQUEST.

68

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE -SEE BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE -SEE ABOVE



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
Change in Town Council Meeting Date from June 19,

2023 to June 20, 2023

 

TOWN BID/RFP#: STATE CONTRACT #:

BID/RFP DATE: TERM:

RENEWALS: TERMS OF RENEWAL:

COST: BUDGET SOURCE/AMOUNT:

DATE: June 5, 2023

DEPARTMENT: Town Clerk

REQUESTED BY: Susan I. Schroeder, Town Clerk

ITEM: Change in Town Council Meeting Date from June 19, 2023 to June 20, 2023

AGENDA ITEM NO. M.4

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION:
Juneteenth Day was recognized as a federal holiday on June 17, 2021. This year June 19th falls on a Monday so the
Federal holiday is also Monday, June 19, 2023.  Although Town Hall is open that day, it is felt that the Monday,
June 19th meeting should be moved to June 20th to commemorate Juneteenth Day.

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:
There would be no commemoration of Juneteenth Day. 

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS:

TOWN MANAGER COMMENTS:
I recommend approval of the motion to move the Monday, June 19, 2023 Town Council meeting to Tuesday, June
20, 2023 in observance of and to commemorate Juneteenth Day.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Motion to move the Monday, June 19, 2023 Town Council meeting to Tuesday, June 20, 2023 to commemorate
Juneteenth Day.

69


	Town Council Agenda
	Cover Page
	Cover Page
	Item C.1 - Cover Page
	Item C.1 - R23-001 Certified Resolution CDBG Block Grant 2023.pdf
	Item C.2 - Cover Page
	Item C.2 - R23-002 Certified Resolution 2023 Fair Housing Action Plan.docx.pdf
	Item J.1 - Cover Page
	Item J.1 - B2b 2023-6-5 appointment.pdf
	Item J.2 - Cover Page
	Item J.2 - 2023-05-15 Special Meeting Minutes - Budget Adoption w Attach.pdf
	Item J.2 - 2023-05-22r w Attach.pdf
	Item K.1 - Cover Page
	Item K.1 - R23-001 Certified Resolution CDBG Block Grant 2023.pdf
	Item K.2 - Cover Page
	Item K.2 - R23-002 Certified Resolution 2023 Fair Housing Action Plan.docx.pdf
	Item M.1 - Cover Page
	Item M.1 - OW CIF2023 Prelim Plan 06-01-23 Rev1.pdf
	Item M.2 - Cover Page
	Item M.2 - CommCenter-SiteImprovements-Plan_12-28-22.pdf
	Item M.3 - Cover Page
	Item M.3 - SDHCorridor-Phase1DemonstrationPlan_Rev05-26-23.pdf
	Item M.4 - Cover Page

